MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL
OF THE TOWN OF CHAPEL HILL, MUNICIPAL BUILDING,
MONDAY, MARCH 28, 1988, 7:30 P.M.

Mayor Jonathan B. Howes called the meeting to order. Council
Members present were:

David Godschalk

Joe Herzenberg
David Pasquini
Nancy Preston

James C. Wallace
Arthur Werner
Roosevelt Wilkerson

Council Member Andresen was absent, excused. Also present were
Town Manager David R. Taylor, Assistant Town Managers Sonna
Loewenthal and Ron Secrist and Town Attorney Ralph Karpinos.

Mayor Howes recognized and said the Council wanted to thank Bryan
Bailey, past UNC Student Body President for his work in further-
ing the good relationship between the Council, Town and students
at the University. He stated that the Council had recently
approved the appointment of a UNC Student Liaison to act as a
formal liaison between the students and the Council and that the
Student Body President would be responsible for the liaison. He
introduced the new UNC Student Body President, Kevin Martin, and
said the Council was looking forward to working with him.

Mayor Howes also introduced a member of the City Council of the
London, England Borough of Trent, Councillor Gwen Tookey. He
said she was in the area visiting relatives and desired to see
how Chapel Hill's Council operated. Ms. Tookey thanked the Mayor
for the introduction and said she was pleased to be at the
meeting. She commented that she had been on the Trent Council
for twenty years. She said she found the Town to be fascinating,
especially the quality of Chapel Hill's refuse collection.

Public Forum on Potential Legislative Requests

Greg Feller, Assistant to the Manager, gave the staff presenta-
tion. He stated that the purpose of the public hearing was to
receive citizen and Council comments on potential 1legislative
requests. He said the deadline for submittal to the General
Assembly was June 8. Mr. Feller stated that draft bills were
proposed for 1) adequate public facilities management which
included authorization for traffic management; 2) entertainment
tax of up to $1.00 per ticket in facilities seating 15,000 or
more; 3) tree protection regulations to extend to the Town's
planning jurisdiction outside the Town 1limits and include re-
guirements to protect soil around trees; 4) financial disclosure
of the Mayor and Council Members' interest in business and real
property;:; 5) campaign finance disclosure; 6) towing vehicles from



off-street Town-owned parking facilities; 7) repeal of section in
Town Charter which limits flexibility of the Council with regard
to membership on the Board of Adjustment; and 8) other matters
which might be suggested by citizens or the Council this evening.

Public Facilities

Peter Thorn, representing the Homebuilders' Association, said the
Association was concerned about the proposed Adequate Facilities
Ordinance and Tree Ordinance and hoped that there would be other
public hearings at which they would be discussed. Mayor Howes
replied that this public hearing was to receive comments on a
request to the General Assembly to grant Chapel Hill the authori-
ty to establish those ordinances. He said that if the authority
were granted then the Town would proceed with developing the
ordinances and would hold public hearings on the proposals.

Mr. Thorn introduced Bill Kalkoff the new Executive Officer of
the Association.

There were no comments from the Council.

Entertainment Tax

Roland Gudiz, speaking as a citizen, spoke in support of the
entertainment tax because it was a tax that would benefit all of
Chapel Hill's citizens, would be a voluntary tax, and would be
paid primarily by individuals outside of Chapel Hill. He said he
felt the this tax was the fairest and least painful levy Chapel
Hill could enact and would offer the University the opportunity
to be a better corporate citizen in Chapel Hill.

There were no comments from the Council.

Tree Regulations

Claire Cooperstein, representing the local chapter of the Sierra
Club, said that the Town had been working on a resource manage-
ment ordinance and that the Sierra Club had been working with the
staff. She spoke in support of the proposal so that the Council
would be authorized to establish a tree ordinance. She said the
Sierra Club would prefer that the draft legislative request state
that "... alteration of trees and shrubs and soils on public and
private property..." instead of "..shrubs and their surrounding
soils..." because the Club wished more protection from removal of
any top soil.

Helen Urquhart, speaking as a citizen, spoke in support of the
proposal for tree regulations. She said there was a tree in her
neighborhood that was in the right-of-way that residents wanted
and had worked hard to save from destruction from encroaching
development. She said this past week it had been severely
damaged in the process of developing the adjoining property. She



said that if there were a tree ordinance, this would not have
been allowed to occur.

There were no comments from the Council.

Disclosure of Financial Interests of the Mayor and Council

There were no citizen comments.

Council Member Preston asked that the Council be provided with
information on what other area municipalities had this regulation
and of any other way to address the issue of potential conflicts
of interest.

Disclosure of Campaign Finance Information

There were no citizen comments.

Council Member Preston asked for information on what other
municipalities of 1less than 50,000 in population have this
regulation.

Towing of Vehicles From Town Parking Facilities

There were no citizen comments.
There were no comments from the Council.

Board of Adjustment Composition - Repeal of Charter Section

There were no citizen comments.
There were no comments from the Council.

Other Matters

There were no citizen comments.

There were no comments from the Council.

COUNCIL MEMBER WERNER MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER HERZEN-
BERG TO REFER TO THE MANAGER AND ATTORNEY. THE MOTION PASSED
UNANIMOUSLY, (8-0).

Public Forum on Interim Budget Report

Manager Taylor said the key issues in the budget for 1988-89 were
the method of debt financing for the 1986 Bond Referenda and the
Landfill operations. He said that he proposed two options for
the debt financing: increasing the tax rate by 2.5 cents per year
for the next four years or creating a reserve fund from the 1/2
cent sales tax revenues restricted for water and sewer purposes.
He said the latter would require that the Council request the



Local Government Commission for an exemption to use those funds.
Manager Taylor stated that the 1landfill would become a major
issue for the budget for the next several years. He said he
anticipated increasing tipping fees over the next few years in an
effort to help offset the increasing costs required to meet
stricter environmental standards. He commented that in the next
year the Town would be completing the use of the current north
side site and move operations to the south side site. Mr. Taylor
also said that the budget report did not include methods of
funding the increased planning programs the Council had indicated
it wanted addressed: tree ordinance, traffic ordinance and
neighborhood planning programs.

Council Member Werner asked if the staff had had any discussions
with OWASA on the proposal to use 1/2 cent sales tax revenues for
debt financing and not for water and sewer projects. He asked if
the staff felt OWASA would increase their fees in response to the
loss of revenues. Manager Taylor replied no. He said that OWASA
had not had use of the funds in their budget and would not have
use of the funds regardless of the proposal for debt financing.
He said OWASA set its rates without considering the potential
revenue source of the 1/2 cent sales tax. He commented that
Carrboro had been granted the exemption from the Local Government
Commission for several years.

Council Member Werner said that the proposal would mean that
certain water and sewer projects would not be funded. Mr. Taylor
replied that it was a possibility but that he proposed keeping
the current $500,000 of the 1/2 cent sales tax revenues for water
and sewer projects.

Council Member Godschalk commented that the high cost of hooking
up to water and sewer often came as a shock to individuals
recently annexed into the Town. He said the Council would need
to look at the equity involved in those individuals who would
have to hook up to water and sewer versus the benefit of the lack
of tax on the entire citizenry.

Manager Taylor said that even if the Town gave the funds to OWASA
there was the possibility that OWASA would not use the funds to
benefit the individuals in newly annexed areas. Council Member
Godschalk stated that the Council could designate where the funds
would be used.

Council Member Pasgquini said he lived in an area that was just
now connecting to OWASA sewer lines so he understood the problems
of having to make that payment. He said that even if the Town
were to give the funds to OWASA he felt there would be a problem
with the funds being used in the manner which the Council de-
sired. He said if the Town were to consider designating the use
of the 1/2 cent sales tax funds it should also look at using the
funds to aid areas already annexed into the Town who have not
received sewer and not just those in newly annexed areas. He
commended the Manager for his innovative approach to the debt



financing and said he 1looked forward to discussing this issue
further.

Council Member Wallace said the Council should remember the
legislative history of the 1/2 cent sales tax funds and that
there had been strong support in the Legislature for use of these
funds for water and sewer projects. He said if exemptions were
to become numerous the Legislature might review the entire
program.

Mayor Howes commented that the 1/2 cent sales tax revenues for
water and sewer projects had been set up by the Legislature to
help areas foster economic development and to upgrade existing
operations. He said these conditions were not present in Chapel
Hill.

Helen Urguhart, speaking as a citizen, spoke in support of
funding for a forester and arborist if the tree ordinance was
approved.

Jay Sargosa, speaking as resident of Orange County, said the
Council should look at the long term view of financing operations
and not just the next year. He said the Town should be develop-
ing methods of paying for services for when the Town's corporate
limits were at the maximum expected.

COUNCIL MEMBER WILKERSON MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER
PRESTON TO REFER TO THE MANAGER. THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY,
(8-0).

Petitions

Kurt Jenne, speaking as a citizen, asked to speak to item #7,
Calling Public Hearing on Skateboard Ramps.

Kathy Harris, representing the Greenways Commission, asked to
speak to item #8, Capital Improvements Program.

United Christian Fellowship

Jerome Hughes and Margaret Edwards petitioned the Council for an
amendment to the noise ordinance to hold a community crusade with
outdoor amplification from 4:30 to 9:30 p.m. on July 12 through
July 15.

Council Member Herzenberg asked why the amplified equipment would
be needed. Mr. Hughes responded that the event would be held at
the Ridgefield ballfield and that the amplification equipment
would be needed to reach individuals in the back of the ball-
field.

Ms. Edwards said a noise ordinance amendment for amplified
equipment would also be needed for Memorial Day, May 30.



COUNCIL MEMBER WILKERSON MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER
PRESTON TO REFER TO THE MANAGER. THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY,
(8-0) .

Minutes
COUNCIL MEMBER WALLACE MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER WERNER
TO ADOPT THE MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 1, 1988 AS CIRCULATED. THE
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY, (8-0).
COUNCIL MEMBER WERNER MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER PASQUINI
TO ADOPT THE MINUTES OF MARCH 14, 1988 AS CIRCULATED. THE MOTION
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY, (8-0).

The Oaks II, Phase V - Preliminary Plat

Roger Waldon, Planning Director, said that the proposal was for
the preliminary plat for The Oaks II, Phase V subdivision that
would be located on the east and west side of New Castle Drive
between Lancaster Drive and the Orange/Durham County line. He
said the Council had requested information on whether or not the
applicant should be required to provide anew the recreation area
for this 7-acre tract and if the applicant should be required to
make a payment-in-lieu that represented a difference between a
payment under the o0ld formula and a payment under the current
formula. Mr. Waldon said the staff believed that it was not
appropriate for the applicant to ke required recreation area
again. He said the recreation area requirement for this 7-acre
parcel was met when the entire subdivision was approved and
therefore the applicant should not be required to provide recrea-
tion area twice. Mr. Waldon said that the staff also did not
believe that it was appropriate to require an additional payment
because the recreation area for the entire subdivision including
these 7 acres had been met in 1986,

Mr. Waldon said the Council had also asked if The Oaks III, as
approved by Durham County, would meet Chapel Hill's subdivision
requirements. He said the staff had reported that the subdivi-
sion would meet Chapel Hill's subdivision requirements with the
exception of complying with Chapel Hill's Resource Conservation
District.

Mr. Waldon stated that a question had also been asked if the area
were to be annexed, whether or not Chapel Hill would be reguired
to honor the preliminary plat approval of Durham County. He said
the Town Attorney advised the staff that the answer was yes. He
said the staff recommended approval of Resolution A.

Council Member Pasquini expressed concern about the two stub-outs
and cross traffic. He also asked if The Oaks III would be in
Chapel Hill. Mr. Waldon said that part of The Oaks III was in an
area under consideration for annexation by the Town, but that the
future annexation agreement between Chapel Hill and Durham would



prevent the entire subdivision from being under consideration for
annexation by Chapel Hill.

Council Member Pasquini asked if The Oaks III were annexed by
Chapel Hill would homes built in areas Chapel Hill would consider
part of the Resource Conservation District be nonconforming once
the area were annexed and what affect would this have on rebuild-
ing if the homes were destroyed. Mr. Waldon said the RCD ordi-
nance had in it a date that indicated that development that
existed on or before that date would not be covered by the
ordinance. He said if there were portions of The Oaks III which
might ultimately be annexed by the Town of Chapel Hill and there
was a lot that was not built upon and was constrained by the RCD
the owner of the lot would need to go through the Town's variance
process. Town Attorney Karpinos said he agreed that a variance
would be needed for the lot which had not been built upon and he
believed that the Town's ordinance addressed the issue of uses
that were damaged to an extent greater than 50% and when they
could be rebuilt. He said the Town's ordinance would apply and
the property owner would have to comply with either the variance
requirements or rebuilding under the nonconforming features
standards.

COUNCIL MEMBER GODSCHALK MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER
WALLACE TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 88-3-28/R-1A. THE MOTION PASSED
UNANIMOUSLY, (8-0).

The resolution, as adopted, reads as follows:

RESOLUTION APPROVING AN APPLICATION FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL
FOR THE OAKS II-PHASE V SUBDIVISION (88-3-28/R-1A)

BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Town of Chapel Hill that The
Oaks II-Phase V subdivision proposed by Goforth Properties, Inc.,
identified as Chapel Hill Township Tax Map 137, part of Lot 10,
if developed according to the preliminary plat dated June 1987,
and the conditions listed below, would comply with the provisions
of the Development Ordinance;

1. That the extension of New Castle Drive and the construction
of Galloway Drive be improved to Class B street with side-
walk according to Town standards.

2. That final street plans, grading plan, utility plans, street
lighting plan, stormwater management plans (with hydrologic
calculations), be approved by the Town Manager before
issuance of 2Zoning Compliance Permit or application for
final plat approval, and that such plans conform to plans
approved by this application and demonstrate compliance with
all applicable conditions and the design standards of the
Development Ordinance and the Design Manual.

3. That sight triangle easements be provided on the final plat.



10.

11.

12,

13.

14,

15.

That the developers shall be responsible for placement and
maintenance of temporary regulatory traffic signs before
issuance of any Certificate of Occupancy until such time
that the street system is accepted for maintenance by the
Town. .

That the applicant take appropriate measures to prevent the
deposit of wet or dry silt on adjacent paved roadways.

If the Town Manager approves a phasing plan, no Certificates
of Occupancy shall be issued for a phase until all required
public improvements for that phase are complete; no Building
Permits for any phase shall be issued until all public
improvements required in previous phases are completed to a
point adjacent to the new phase; and that a note to this
effect shall be placed on the final plat.

That final utility plans, including a street lighting plan,
be approved by the Town Manager, OWASA, Duke Power, Southern
Bell, Public Service Gas Co., and Carolina Cable before
issuance of a Zoning Compliance Permit.

That prior to paving streets, utility service laterals be
stubbed out to the front property lines of each lot. Sani-
tary sewer laterals shall be capped off above ground.

That easement documents as required by OWASA and the Town
Manager be recorded before final plat approval.

That names of the development and its streets and
house/building numbers be approved by the Town Manager prior
to issuance of a Zoning Compliance Permit.

That a soil erosion and sedimentation control plan be
approved by the Orange County Erosion Control Officer before
issuance of a Zoning Compliance Permit.

That tree protection fences be installed to protect signifi-
cant existing trees and their root systems, before issuance
of a Zoning Compliance Permit.

That a fire flow report prepared by a registered profession-
al engineer, showing that flows meet the minimum require-
ments of the Design Manual, be approved prior to issuance of
a Zoning Compliance Permit.

That no Certificate of Occupancy be issued until all re-
quired public improvements are completed; and that a note to
this effect shall be placed on the final plat.

That continued validity and effectiveness of this approval
is expressly conditioned on the continued compliance with
the plans and conditions listed above.



16. That if any of the above conditions is held invalid, this
approval shall be void.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council hereby approves the
application for preliminary plan approval for The Oaks II, Phase
5 Subdivision in accord with the plans and conditions listed
above.

This the 28th day of March, 1988.

Municipal Building Expansion

Council Member Preston said the proposal was for the Council to
approve a resolution directing the architects to proceed from the
design and model presented that evening to detailed design
drawings and application for Site Plan approval. She said the
resolution also called for a work session on April 19 to review
interior plans for the Council Chamber.

Dan Huffman, representing Hager, Smith and Huffman, presented the
schematic design for the building expansion.

Council Member Godschalk expressed concern that the plans includ-
ed excavating for parking. He said the southwest corner of the
parking lot would be 16' below the current grade. He also
expressed concern that the projected cost at this stage of the
plans was already over budget.

Assistant Town Manager Sonna Loewenthal said it was correct that
the excavation would cost approximately $70,000 more than if the
site were not excavated. She said however, that the $70,000
figure was just an estimate based on 5 initial borings taken on
the site. Ms. Loewenthal said that additional borings would be
made before any excavation was done and that it was not possible
to say definitively that the cost would be $70,000.

Council Member Godschalk said that the total estimated cost for
the proposed schematic was over the $2 million budget. Ms.
Loewenthal replied yes and that the costs would have to be
reduced.

Mayor Howes asked how costs would be reduced. Ms. Loewenthal
said that at this point the cost estimates were preliminary and
once additional design work was done it would be possible to
figure a more accurate cost estimate and would be possible to
figure how to cut the costs.

Mayor Howes asked if the preliminary costs were figured on gross
square footage multiplied by the cost per square foot. Mr.
Huffman replied yes and that they had asked the contractor of the
original building to look up the figures from the present build-
ing. He said from this point on there would be more detailed
cost estimates on the building and materials.



-10-

Council Member Herzenberg asked when the additional borings would
be done. Mr. Huffman responded that if the proposal was approved
that evening they would proceed with this as soon as possible.
Council Member Herzenberg asked if there results showed rock
instead of soil in the area to be excavated when would this
information be made available. Mr. Huffman replied that they
would try to have that information by the April 19 work session.

Council Member Werner commented that he was not in favor of the
suggested clock tower. He asked how tall it would be. Mr.
Huffman replied that the clock tower had been suggested as a
method of identifying the building from the street. He said the
model showed it to be 16' above the roof level.

Council Member Wallace asked how many trees were estimated to be
removed with the proposal. Mr. Huffman replied approximately 16
to 18 trees.

Council Members Pasquini and Wallace said they hoped there would
be opportunity to discuss the exterior and interior design at the
work session.

Council Member Preston said that the Municipal Building Expansion
Committee was arranging a trip to Hickory, N.C. to view the
Council Chamber there and invited the Council Members to go along
on this trip. She said the trip was tentatively set for April 8.

COUNCIL MEMBER PRESTON MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER WILKER-
SON TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 88-3-28/R-2. THE MOTION CARRIED, (7-1),
WITH COUNCIL MEMBER GODSCHALK VOTING AGAINST.

The resolution, as adopted, reads as follows:

A RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE ARCHITECTS OF THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING
EXPANSION TO DEVELOP DESIGN DRAWINGS AND AN APPLICATION FOR SITE
PLAN APPROVAL FROM THE SCHEMATIC DESIGNS PRESENTED IN THE COUNCIL
(88-3-28/R-2)

WHEREAS, the Council, the Appearance Commission, the Planning
Board, the public, and the Municipal Building Expansion Committee
have all contributed to the design work to date for the Municipal
Building Expansion; and

WHEREAS, the firm of Hager Smith and Huffman have presented to
the Council drawings and a model of a schematic design for the
project;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Town of
Chapel Hill that the architects are directed to develop the work
presented tonight into detailed design drawings and an applica-
tion for Site Plan approval.



-11-

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council, in its role as owner,
shall have an opportunity to comment on and authorize its appli-
cation before the Planning Board acts.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council sets a work session on
Tuesday, April 19 at 7:30 p.m. to discuss with the architects and
the MBE Committee the interior designs for the Council Chamber.

This the 28th day of March, 1988.

Skateboard Ramps - Calling for Public Hearings on Regulating

Attorney Karpinos said the proposal was in response to a petition
from Council Member Godschalk. He said he had researched this
matter and discussed it with other staff and prepared two resolu-
tions which were not necessarily mutually exclusive. He stated
that the first resolution would call a public hearing to seek to
hear from the public as to the nature and extent of the particu-
lar skateboard ramp on Rogerson Drive, as well as skateboard
ramps in general. He said the idea was that if there were
sufficient evidence presented at the hearing there could be a
basis under the Town's Police power to regulate skateboard ramps
or a particular skateboard ramp as a public nuisance. He said
the question would be in the evidence at a hearing would have to
address the question of whether the skateboard ramp or skateboard
ramps in general injure the community's health, safety and
welfare and therefore justifying some kind of police power
regulation of the facility.. He said the evidence could also show
that skateboard ramps were private problems, possibly private
nuisances interfering with the enjoyment of neighboring property.
Mr. Karpinos said there was a lawsuit brought by private individ-
uals with respect to the Rogerson Drive skateboard ramp and as
best he could tell the lawsuit had ceased activity and that the
efforts by the private individuals to seek a remedy had not gone
forward.

Mr. Karpinos said the second resolution was an attempt to consid-
er the matter under the land use regulation authority of the
Town. He said the proposal was to call a public hearing to
consider an amendment to the Development Ordinance to address the
future installation of skateboard ramps but would leave any
existing skateboard ramps as nonconforming uses. He said the
proposal would consider requiring minimum lot sizes, minimum
buffers or other types of setbacks, as well as prohibition on
residential zoned property.

Mayor Howes asked if the Attorney had a preference of between the
two approaches. Attorney Karpinos said he did not know that the
Town would hear sufficient evidence at any public hearing that
would establish the particular ramp at Rogerson Drive to consti-
tute a public nuisance as he understood the law with regard to
public nuisances, but that there may be some room for police
power regulation with perhaps to the time of day in which the



-12-

facility could be used or the number of people who could use it
at one time. He said there was no current evidence that the
facility violated any present provision of the Town ordinances.

Kurt Jenne, speaking as a resident, stated that his son was a
skater and that he and his son would be out of town on the
evening of April 11 and would like to attend the hearing and
speak to the issue. He suggested deferring the hearing to May 9.

COUNCIL MEMBER GODSCHALK MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER
HERZENBERG TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 88-3-28/R-3.1.

Council Member Godschalk stated that the skateboard ramp on

Rogerson Drive was not a normal quiet backyard occurrence. He
said that if evidence could be produced then he felt the best way
to regulate the matter was as a public nuisance. He said he had

no preference for the date of the public hearing.

COUNCIL MEMBERS GODSCHALK AND HERZENBERG AGREED TO AMEND THEIR
MOTION TO STATE THAT THE PUBLIC HEARING WOULD BE HELD ON MAY 9,

Council Member Werner stated that he felt the proposed public
hearings were more than what was needed in this instance. He
said he felt there were many other skateboard ramps within the
Town which did not constitute public nuisances. He said he was
not in favor of outright banning of skateboard ramps and that
this was what it appeared to him would be the end result of the
proposed public hearings.

Council Member Godschalk stated that he felt the issue was a
concern to the citizens of the Town, especially the residents of
Rogerson Drive. He said the purpose of the public hearing would
be to see if there were evidence that that type of skateboard
ramp was not suitable for a residential neighborhood and should
be located at a park, etc. with sufficient buffers to limit the
intrusion on the neighborhood.

Council Member Wallace said the Town had the police power to
remove any public nuisance. He said he felt he could declare the
skateboard ramp on Rogerson Drive as a public nuisance and then
act accordingly. He said the ideal place for such a ramp may be
at the new Southern Park.

Council Member Preston questioned the language of the resolution
where it said it would consider the "possible" prohibition of
skateboard ramps and she asked if the wording of the resolution
left open the possibility of moving the ramp to an area where it
could be better used as a recreational facility. She said she
understood the Rogerson Drive ramp was a nuisance for the
neighbors but it did provide an area for the children to play.

Attorney Karpinos stated that the purpose of the public hearing
would be to get public comment on the possible prohibition or
regulation of skateboard ramps in residential areas.



-13-

Mayor Howes said there was a lot of open space near Rogerson
Drive where it could possibly be moved. He said he would support
the resolution but he said he agreed with Council Member Werner's
concerns about the approach being used. BHe said he was support-
ing the resolution in the search for a solution to the problem.
He said he would have preferred that the neighbors work out the
problem between themselves.

Council Member Herzenberg said that this was another instance
that might have been better served by the neighbors taking their
dispute to the Dispute Settlement Center.

THE MOTION CARRIED, (7-1), WITH COUNCIL MEMBER WERNER VOTING
AGAINST.

The resolution, as adopted, reads as follows:

A RESOLUTION CALLING A PUBLIC HEARING FOR CONSIDERATION OF
AMENDING THE TOWN CODE TO REGULATE AND POSSIBLY PROHIBIT THE USE
OF SKATEBOARD RAMPS (88-3-28/R-3.1)

WHEREAS, the Town staff, including the Police and Inspections
Department, have investigated numerous complaints regarding the
operation of a skateboard ramp in a residential area of Chapel
Hill; and

WHEREAS, as a result of these investigations it has been deter-
mined that there are no violations of any current ordinances of
the Town; and

WHEREAS, the Council has received numerous complaints regarding
the this situation and believes that the public health, safety
and welfare of the citizens of Chapel Hill warrant consideration
of the possible prohibition of skateboard ramps or regulation of
their use because they may constitute a public nuisance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Town of
Chapel Hill that it calls a public hearing for May 9, 1988, to
hear public comment on the possible prohibition of skateboard
ramps or regulation of such facilities in residential areas as
public nuisances.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that notice of this hearing be mailed to
those persons whose names and addresses are on file as having
previously written the Town regarding the skateboard ramp on
Rogerson Drive.

This the 28th day of March, 1988,

Capital Improvements Program - 1988-93

Sonna Loewenthal, Assistant Town Manager, presented the Manager's
recommended 1988-93 Capital Improvements Program. She said this



-14-

was the first comprehensive, long-range projection of needs and
resources in several years. She indicated that the program
called for all the Capital Reserve funds in the third year of
this program to be dedicated to the renovation of the existing
Municipal Building. Ms. Loewenthal stated that for some projects
all the funding needs had not been determined and would require
continual refining of the needs assessments. She stated that the
staff as a result of citizen comments at the public forum had
reviewed the funding needs and sources. She said the Greenways
Commission had requested increased funding to $50,000 annually
and the Parks and Recreation Commission had expressed concern
about the 1level and timing of park improvements funding. Ms.
Loewenthal said the staff proposed increasing funding for
greenways from $125,000 to $150,000 - two years at $25,000 and
two years at $50,000. She said that the $50,000 increase in
funding for greenways had been taken from the funding for storm-
water management. She stated that the staff also had reallocated
the funds for athletic facility lighting replacement so that work
could begin in 1988-89. Ms. Loewenthal also stated that in-
creased funding for bikeways was possible due to NCDOT funding of
$244,000.

Council Member Preston asked what had been the greenway alloca-
tion before the proposed CIP. She said